General report of the Royal Hospitals of Bridewell and Bethlem, and of the King Edward's Schools, for the year ending 31st December, 1863: printed for use of the governors / Bridewell Royal Hospital and Bethlem Royal Hospital.

Contributors

Bridewell Royal Hospital.
Rudge, E.
Haydon, George H.
Copeland, W. T.
Helps, W.
Johnson, John Edward.
Jeaffreson, A. M.
Bethlem Royal Hospital (London, England)
Bridewell Royal Hospital. King Edward's Schools.

Publication/Creation

London: Batten, [1864]

Persistent URL

https://wellcomecollection.org/works/c7rc3ybe

License and attribution

This work has been identified as being free of known restrictions under copyright law, including all related and neighbouring rights and is being made available under the Creative Commons, Public Domain Mark.

You can copy, modify, distribute and perform the work, even for commercial purposes, without asking permission.



Wellcome Collection 183 Euston Road London NW1 2BE UK T +44 (0)20 7611 8722 E library@wellcomecollection.org https://wellcomecollection.org

GENERAL REPORT

OF

THE ROYAL HOSPITALS

OF

BRIDEWELL AND BETHLEM

AND OF

KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS,

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st DECEMBER, 1863.

PRINTED FOR THE USE OF THE GOVERN

Pilge

CONTENTS.

BRIDEWELL HOSPITAL.

And the Research on purchase the state that the great with stating ow?	Page
LIST OF OFFICERS AND SERVANTS	6
General Account and Expenditure.	
KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS.	
REPORT	7
TABLES,	
	14
	15
	16
	17
· Constitution of the second state of the second state of the second sec	18
Degree of acquirements	19
WODE	
WORK,	-
The Ropemaker's Account 20,	
The Shoemaker's ,,	
	23 24
	25
	25
The second secon	27
	-
LIST OF OFFICERS AND SERVANTS	29
Inol of officers and past and the contract of	-0
BETHLEM HOSPITAL.	
REPORT,	
Number of Patients admitted	31
Curable	32
Criminal	32

BETHLEM HOSPITAL—continued.		Pag
Number discharged Cured		32
" Uncured		32
" For Special reasons		32
Removal of Female Criminal Lunatics to Broadmoor		32
Deaths		32
Two patients discharged, their friends making no return on	their	
leave of absence		33
Patients removed contrary to the advice of Medical Officer	s and	
Committee		33
Suicide of a patient who had been removed by her friends.		33
No casualty or accident in the Hospital during the year		33
Deaths from Paralysis		34
Large number of patients with suicidal tendency		34
Number of deaths from advanced age		34
Necessity of early and judicious management of the insane		35
Transfer of patients from other Institutions		35
Advantage of change of air and scene on patients		36
Visit of patients to the Crystal Palace, &c		36
Patients allowed to take exercise beyond the precincts of	of the	
Hospital		36 37
Satisfactory account of the Attendants		37
Presents of prints, books, &c., by Governors and friends Readings from the poets much enjoyed by the patients	19.70	37
Weekly Class for the practice of church singing		38
Weekly Class for the practice of church singing		90
TABLES,		
Patients admitted and discharged		41
Average number of Patients in the Hospital attending C		
and under restraint, during the last twenty-three years		
Total number of curable patients admitted during 100		
ending the 31st December, 1863, with the amount of		
and deaths		42
Annual admissions, cures, and deaths, of curable patients d	uring	
the last forty-three years		43
Form of mental disease		44
Monthly admissions, cures, and deaths		44
Ages		45
Duration of disease before admission		45

CONTENTS.

BETHLEM HOSPITAL—continued.	Page
Degree of education	46
Religious persuasion	46
Domestic condition	47
Residence	47
State of general health	48
Behaviour	48
Suicidal tendency	49
Number of previous attacks	49
Apparent or assigned causes of disease 50	51
Occupation of curable patients admitted during I863	52
" discharged cured in 1863	53
" discharged uncured in 1863	54
" who died during 1863	55
Particulars of patients who died during 1863, as reported to the	
Bethlem Sub-Committee	56
Return of employment, July 1, 1863	57
Females employed on July 1, 1863	57
Time in Hospital	58
Patients cared	59
Daily average number of patients in the Hospital during the	
year 1863	60
Return of the incurable patients now in the Hospital 61, 62,	
Time the incurable patients have been in the Hospital	64
Degree of education of incurable patients in the Hospital	64
Synopsis of offences of the criminal lunatics confined in Bethlem Hospital, 31st December, 1863	0-
Time the criminal patients have been in the Hospital	65
Time the criminal patients have been in the Hospital	65
DIETARY TABLE 66,	67
LIST OF OFFICERS, ATTENDANTS, AND SERVANTS 68, 69,	70
General account of receipt and expenditure for the year 1863.	

General account of both Hospitals.

BRIDEWELL HOSPITAL.

LIST OF OFFICERS AND SERVANTS.

		£	8.	d.
1	Surveyor	125	0	0
*]	Clerk, Receiver and Accountant	270	0	0
3	Chaplain	120	0	0
1	Organist	21	0	0
1	Clerk of Works	54	12	0
*]	Beadle at	80	0	0
	Ditto as Chapel Clerk	20	0	0
*]	Beadle at	62	8	0
2	Clerk's Assistants	95	0	0
		£848	0	0

^{*} Lodged and furnished with coals.

Each Beadle has a suit of clothes, and a hat, with twenty-one shillings every year for shoes, and a great coat every three years.

						-
					EXPENDITURE.	
	RECEIPT				1900 Jan, 1	
				1 100 1000	Ledg. Yolo.	
	Parameter Street	-		£ 1. d.		
1963					of extenses second process troping, sec-	1. 6.
Jan. 1	To Balance of Account audited to 31st December, 1862			3,827 13 24	275 Oatmeal, &c	
	To RENT, Rent-charges, Land Tax, and Insurance, viz			100000000000000000000000000000000000000	277 Clothing and Bedding	
	Arrears, 31st December, 1862, per audit		£1,914 13 10		281 Saso, Oil, Candles, &c	
	One Year's Rent, Land Tax, Rent-charges, &c., from Michaelmas,				283 Coals, &c	
	mas, 1863	Inani to mirman	12,126 8 5		294 Salaries of Chaplain, Surveyor, Clerk, &c	
	Overnaid				Warrend Bur Bur 162 8 0	
	Overpaid		004		294 Wages of Deadles	
			£14,041 2 7		290 Furniture and Repairs	
			214,011 2 9		210 Printing and Stationary 55 17 0	
					318 Repairs of Building, &c	
	To Received, viz		/		are an armining men	
	Bridewell Precinct		£5,517 11 6		010 11 01 01 01 01 01 01 01	
			5.134 1 2		322 Casual Espenses	4.5
			331 10 0			
	Holborn				317 Deductions from Rental-	8 1
	Maidstone Buildings, Southwark		241 13 4		Premiums of Insurance	1 10 3
4	Oxfordahire		491 19 2		316 Taxes and Rates	
	Kent		209 10 0		299 Law Charges	5 1
	Rent-charges		56 18 4		320 Superannuation Annuities	7 6
			£11,983 3 6	11,983 3 6	Charges and Expenses attending King Edward's Schools—	
	Property Tax allowed		423 18 7		332 Meat £353 14 6	
	Allowances		2 15 0	THE RESERVE	334 Bread and Flour 635 10 0	
	Bad		179 13 5		336 Potatoes, Oatmeal, &c 68 10 0	
	Arrears of Rent to Michaelmas, 1863, unpaid 31st December, 186		1,451 12 1		337 Milk 169 6 0	
	Arrears of Rent to Michaelmas, 1803, unpaid 2186 December, 180	,	1,451 15 1		381 Cheesemongery and Grocery 623 17 3	
			£14,041 2 7		138 0 0	
			/		2,188 17 9	
Ledger Folio.				J. 19 1 1 1	374 Clothing and Bedding £873 8 1	
	To DIVIDENDS on Stock in the Public Funds, viz				350 Soap, Oil, and Candles	
231	£21,000 0 0, 3 per Cent. Reduced Annuities		630 0 0	The state of	330 Soup, Only and Canada	
233	1,409 17 6, 31 per Cent. Annuities, in Chancery				572 Coali and Firewood 11 11 11 11	
234	34,000 0 0, New 3 per Cent. Stock				200 Securities and Pringers	
234	3,187 5 1, 3 per Cent. Annuities, in Chancery, (half-year)				350 Furniture and Repairs	
235					Apply to the House and World	
235	771 10 1,	.,	11 11 4		338 Salaries of Chaplain, Surgeon, Clerk, &c	
	THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF THE		59 7 5		338 Salary of Schoolmaster, Wages of Servants, &c	
239	2,500 0 0, 3 per Cent. Consols		75 0 0	2000000000		
	The state of the s		1000	1,865 15 9	900 Bicut and 14res (1 11 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	
247	To Casual Receipts,-				383 Printing and Stationery	
	Received for Assignment of Leases		600		376 Repairs of Building	
	" Donation from W. D. Cronin, Esq		25 0 0		385 Casual Expenses	
	Sir James Tyler		26 5 0		378 Working Materials and Wages	
					370 Outfitting of Inmates, &c	
	Property Tax on Rents to March, 1861				386 Superannuation Annuities 75 0 0	
	Ditte ditto ditto, 1862				6,153	14 8
	M Disto and 1002 11		405 8 5	1,087 18 11	309 Paid for purchase of 45000. New 3 per Cent. Stock	10 0
318	Sale of old Building Materials at Bridewell					
0.0	1			2,148 4 8	285 Paid for purchase of Land in Todor Street	
					Description 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	19 10
				1	285 . , at Wittey, for New Schools	Santana .
						19 10
						16 25
	and the same of the same of the same of				The state of the s	
	AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE			£20,912 16 0}	220,912	16 01
					20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	-
				11/20 0 0	A. M. JEAFFRESON,	
					Clash Passing Sa	
					terr, necestr, ye.	
					we have the shaded have been also been also as the state of the state	27.
					We, whose names are hereunto subscribed, have Examined and Audited the preceding Account for the Year One Tho	
					Eight Hundred and Sixty-three, and find the same correct, and the Balance as specified, this Twenty-third day of Jar	nuary.
					One Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty-four.	100000
					JOHN EDWARD JOHNSON, Treasurer.	
					JAS. LYS SEAGER, 1 185 12 0	
					and the same of th	
			wieled a 2		B. DREW,	
					G. OSTELL LEICESTER.	
					A. BOYSON, SEE 10 0	
					M. Bornes of Chapter, Surveyor, Cort. As Ay POLSON'	
					THE ANTIQUE AND A SECOND ASSESSMENT OF THE PARTY OF THE P	

EURODA CIA REMAN

BECEL

DEWARD'S SCHOOLS

One Ten's Ment, Land Tex, Mail charges, &c., from Mach

PHAPELLIN'S REPORT, 1863.

resignation the Perspent

state of the Transmann, and the

Ling Edward's Schools

MEN

Allower to you my Report on

d King Edward's Schools for

ofow sto

THE REPORT OF THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY OF

es were remaining in the School on the 31st of

KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS.

CHAPLAIN'S REPORT, 1863.

To the Right Worshipful the PRESIDENT, the Worshipful the TREASURER, and the GOVERNORS of King Edward's Schools.

MY LORDS AND GENTLEMEN,

I have the honour to present to you my Report on the state and progress of King Edward's Schools for the year 1863.

During that year, there were

Admit	ted.		Dischar	rged	
Boys		83	Boys		84
Girls		57	Girls		52
Total		140	Total		136

There were remaining in the School on the 31st of

December last, 100 Boys and 99 Girls, making a total of 199 inmates.

Of the number admitted during the year, 3 boys only, and no girls, had been brought before the Magistrates for theft, vagrancy, or other minor offence;—a circumstance upon which I sincerely congratulate you.

The Sub-Committee of Governors, who meet at the School on the second and fourth Friday in every month for the purpose of admitting candidates, have exercised the greatest care that none but the most destitute cases shall partake of the benefits of your noble Institution; and, as a rule, they have refused to admit any but fatherless children.

No case sent from the City has been rejected; and the Scheme for the Regulation of the Charity has been carried out most strictly, both in the letter and the spirit.

I feel it necessary to call your attention to the extreme youth of most of the applicants for admission, because it has an important bearing upon the number discharged to situations during the last two years, as well as upon the number of former inmates who in 1863 presented themselves for rewards for good conduct; in both of which, it will be seen by a reference to the Tabular Statements in former Reports, there has been a decrease. When I became your Chaplain, eight years ago, the average age of Candidates for admission was 14 and 15 years. Of the 83 boys admitted last

year, 31 were under 13 years of age; and of the 57 girls admitted, 35-more, that is, than one-half were under Most of these had, indeed, only exceeded the age of 12 by a few weeks, and 2 boys and 3 girls were under 12. This circumstance affects rather inconveniently the Industrial Employment of the inmates. I have had some difficulty in keeping the Boys' Trades Classes at their usual strength; and it will be readily understood that there are many parts of household and laundry work in which it is scarcely possible, nor indeed safe, to employ little girls of tender age. I am unable to account for the fact to which I have alluded, except by supposing either that children now obtain employment more readily than was formerly the case, or that the multiplication within the last few years of Reformatory and other Charity Schools in the Metropolis and its neighbourhood, has visibly diminished the calls upon our own Institution. In either case, the subject, it must be admitted, is one for congratulation rather than the reverse.

I am happy to Report that the conduct of the inmates during the last year has been excellent. Punishment is almost unknown amongst them; and their frank demeanour and cheerful appearance would assure any visitor that they possess in the School a happy home.

We have lost two children by death; but, upon the whole, the health of the inmates has been remarkably good; and we have again been mercifully spared from the visitation of any epidemic disease.

The boys who have left us during the year have been disposed of as follows:

Outfitted to the Royal Navy	55
To Situations in Trades	13
Removed by their Friends	7
Absconded	4
Sent Home ill	4
Died	1
or, up the presence of the Pre-	
Total	04

I continue to receive the most satisfactory accounts of the conduct of our boys who have joined the Royal Navy. During the last eight years I have placed no less than 503 boys in that most desirable service, and I am able to state positively that considerably more than 400 of them are still serving their Queen and Country, to the entire satisfaction of their commanding officers. At Christmas, we invited all of our boys who were on leave of absence from the training ships to spend an evening at the Schools, and gave them a magic lantern entertainment and a supper. A considerable number attended, and seemed thoroughly to enjoy the opportunity of renewing their acquaintance with their masters and schoolfellows.

Fifty-two girls have left the Institution during the year. They have been disposed of as follows:—

Outfitted and sent to Situations	39
Removed by Friends	8
Absconded	2
Sent Home ill	2
Died	1
Total	52

I regret that I should have to report that 4 boys and 2 girls have absconded. This is an event of most unusual occurrence. Three of the boys, however, and both the girls, returned at once to their friends: the other boy has, I am afraid, fallen into evil courses.

On the 31st of July, the Schools were examined by H. M. Inspector, in the presence of the President and some of the Governors. I insert the official report.

"I have this day examined the Children in King Edward's Schools. They are intelligently iustructed, and passed a very fair examination, considering the unfortunate circumstances in which they have mostly passed their previous lives. The Establishment appears in excellent order throughout.

" (Signed), E. CARLETON TUFNELL,

"H. M. Inspector of Schools."

146 boys, and 41 girls, formerly inmates of the Schools, attended before the Committee during the year, with certificates of good conduct from their employers, and received the customary reward of £1. each. Of these, 63 boys and 25 girls were rewarded for the first time; 61 boys and 9 girls for the second time; and 22 boys and 7 girls for the third and last time.

I trust that this Report will not seem to you to be less favourable than those which I have presented in former years. With the exception of the few instances in which the benefits of the Institution were wilfully renounced, I am not aware that there is any circumstance to mar the pleasing restrospect of the year that has just passed away.

I have only to add my best thanks for the courtesy and kindness I have experienced from yourselves, and to subscribe myself,

My Lords and Gentlemen,

Your obedient Servant,

EDWARD RUDGE,

Chaplain and Superintendent.

KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS, January 16th, 1864. which the benefits of the Institution were wilfully recovered, I am not aware that there is any circumstant to make the pleasing restrospect of the year that he was quested away.

I have only to add my best that as the course of and leindness I have experienced from courselves, at to subscribe myself,

My Lords and Gentlevin.

Your obelimines wo Y.

TABLES

The state of the s

Hard to the second of the seco

William Committee of the Committee of th

No. 1.

EXPENDITURE IN THE KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS IN THE YEARS 1862 AND 1863.

- NE 12			186	2.	18	363.	
	HT	£	s.	d.	£	8.	d.
Meat		. 473	14	2	553	14	6
Bread and Flour		. 681	14	0	635	10	0
Potatoes, Oatmeal, &c		. 79	18	6	68	10	0
Milk		. 167	16	0	169	6	0
Cheesemongery and Grocer	ies	. 682	8	2	623	17	3
Beer			0	3	138	0	0
		-	2000	-	-		_
	f Provisions			1	2188		9
Clothing and Bedding				5	873	8	1
Soap, Oil, Candles, &c		. 238	9	0	229	0	9
Coals and Firewood		. 244	11	9	209	3	9
Medicine		. 35	0	0	37	18	3
Furniture and Repairs		. 122	13	3	89	17	4
Salaries of Chaplain, Surge	on, &c	. 810	0	0	792	0	0
Wages of Schoolmasters, S	ervants, &c	. 331	6	0	318	4	0
Rent and Taxes			3	10	261	1	5
Printing and Stationery		. 95	0	7	37	10	9
Workmen's Bills for Repair			18	1	191	3	3
Casual Payments and Sund			17	0	25	4	10
Working Materials and Wag			8	1	37	18	0
Outfit of Inmates, and Grat			6	6	787	6	6
Books			0	0	0	0	0
Superannuation Annuities			0	0	75	0	0
Superannuation Annualities						-	
		£6895	10	7	6153	14	8
			-	-			-

No. 2.

GENERAL RETURN, from October, 1830, to 31st December, 1863.

	KING E	DW	ARD	s schools				
1	de si	1 4	138	121123		792	I	
	good con inuance i e. 2nd & 3rd	F.	14	: 165233		116		
	Rewarded for good con- duct and continuance in service.	M.	191	38988 :		676		
	ded for g ad contin service.	F.	181	106 112 99 88 88		1001		
	eward act ai	E.	143	11898		250		
-	gg.	M.	338	*52488 :		757		N,
		F	2198	238 201 169 166 136	3411	3106		HAYDON,
1	Total.	. A	959	1. 558 558 558 558 558 558 558 558 558 55		1866 1242 3106		IA
1		M.	1239	251112 :		1866		H
1		F.	1 2	٠::٣٥٠:		18		H.
	Died.	14	-	::::		6		
1		M.	-	d:::d:		0		GEORGE
	PERSON NO	F	101	٠٠٠: ٥٠٠:		129		GE
1	Ill, Pregnant, or Imbecile.	E.	47	465 :465 :		69		-
19	E 20120	M.	150	40:04:	7	70		777
		T.	163	151 151 15		597		
ED.	By request or concurrence of friends,	.i.	203	E-088:	400	237		
ARG		N.	260	18882 :	ON	360		
DISCHARGED.		H	129	:00:0:	Pad H	147		
D	Absconded.	F.	10	::":01:	06	8	1	
	1	M.	124	:00:4:	130	139	1	
		F	124	:::0:::	22	126		
1999	Expelled.	2.	8	:::01::	1	20	1	
		M	99	111111		99		
		H	6	::::::	2	6		
	Emigrated.	E.	6	::::::		6		
1		M.	:	::::::	1	:	-	
9		H	1359	206 1129 1113 107	1	2081	13	
180	Outfitted & sent to Situations.	E.	620	324408 :		848		
		M.	739	822 823 825 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83	1	1233	1	
	Y III	F.	1346 1066 2402	222 172 164 140 140	1	3307	3108	199
	Admitted.	E.	1066	: 528888	1100	1341	1242	88
		M.	1346	149 1119 83 1111 83	-	1966	1866	100
	1 10 120 14	F	:	204 194 197 199 199		1		-
oft a	In the House or	1	:	282828				
		M.	:	100 88 100 100 100			ges .	186
.12	Average Daily Numbe		176	176 180 180 185 :	90		1 Dischar	the Hou
	Years.	-	ending Dec. 31, 1858	Jan.1, 1859 1860 1862 1863 1863			1861. Total Discharges	31 Dec. In the House
-	- 1	-		7		1		**

Steward.

No. 3.

ADMISSIONS.

Years.	7700	ride			0	Prisons Prison		ospi	itals		Hon	ne.		Tot	al.
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	Т.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.
1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-
1830	11	11	22	4		4		1	1		1		15	12	27
1831		8	20	17	9	26			1.	ii	1	9 20	40	1000000	66
1832		9	20	12	5	17		14	14	4	4.00	9 13	27	37	64
1833		3	8	1	2	3		11	11	1		8 9	7	24	31
1834		2	8	2	1	3		12	12	7	1		15	26	41
1835		1	2	6	6	12		13	13	11	2:		18	43	61
1836		6	15	16	4	20	.1	8	9	19	18		45	36	81
1837		5	14	5 5	12 5	17		6	1	6 4	12		21 13	34	55 30
1838		6	10	1	2	3		1	1	3	5		8	14	22
1840		1	16	9	6	15		2	2	29	38		53	47	100
1841	9	7	16	8	8	16		2	2	13	33		30	50	80
1842	8	5	13	1	4	5		4	4	18	11		27	24	51
1843	12	2	14	5		5				11	11		28	13	41
1844	14	5	19	3	4	7		1	1	::	17		17	27	44
1845	16	4	20	2	6	8				18	29		36	39	75
1846		6	29	4 2	3	7 3	2		2	17 12	29		46 35	38	68
1847		5	25 20	2	1 2	4	**	1	1	14	17		31	24	55
1848 1849	13		13	11	7	18				26	23		50	30	80
1850		4	15	18	14	32				35	39	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	64	57	121
1851	100000	2	14	19	9	28		1	1	41	30	71	72	42	114
1852	9	3	12	29	9	38				38	37		76	49	125
1853	7	2	9	3	1	4				58	45		69	48	117
1854	1		1	39	12	51				48	50		88	62	150
1855				37	3	40				55	1 100	87	92	35 47	127
1856				25	6	31				75 72		116	100	58	162
1857		••		32 50	12	61	300			77		130	127	64	191
1858 1859	7 7 2	•		35		35	4		1	113	1 0000	172	149	59	208
1860				16	4	00				142	59	201	158	63	221
1861				5	2	7	200	3	4	113		161	119	53	172
1862				5	1	6	2.	.	2	104		156	111	53	164
1863				3		3				80	57	137	83	57	140
		-			-					-		-	-	-	-
	259	105	364	432	171	603	7 8	31	88	1275	984	2259	1862	1288	3150
- 57		BO	1					-					-		
	1	He !				1995	GI	103	RGE	Н.	HAY	DON		ward.	

No. 4.

THE BI-MONTHLY REPORT FROM 11TH TO 25TH DECEMBER, 1863.

Numb			M.	F.	Total.
2. dilli	er of	Inmates remained last Report	103	99	202
			104	99	203
		(Royal Navy	4		4
		Merchant Service		1	
		To Situations			
Disch	arged	At request of friends	1000		
22001	an Scu	At own request	13.	1	1000
		Abseonded		1	R. A. S.
		Discharged by Committee	::	1::	
		Through Illness		-	
			4		4
		Remaining	100	99	199
Deen	i bair	n trades, needlework, domestic and other			
		and attending school daily or periodically	48	99	147
		chool only	52		52
		k			
		rs			
				-	
Mon	itors.		100	99	199
M.	F.	OCCUPATIONS.			
2		Tailors	17	100	17
5		Tailors Shoemakers	20	::	17 20
2	1	Bakers	2		2
1		Ropemakers	6		6
		Hall	2		2
1	3 33				0
	2	Needlework		64	64
1	2	Kitchen		6	6
	2	Laundry and Washing		20	20
	1	Household		4	4
1	1	(Matron		2	2
		Officers' service Superintendents (Deputy)		2	2
		Schoolmaster	1		1
2	1	Attending school	52		52
		Gatekeeper		1	1
	9		100	99	199

No. 4—(continued.) State of School.

		T.	:	Chara	2	114	79	4	199
fotal.	:	F.	A :	Odenniko			39	3	66
	8	M.	× 1		-	28	40	1	100
50 Da	20.02	T.	K t		:	:	:	:	:
	200	F.	8.	CELLEGI	:	:	:	:	
		M.	:	Learnin	8.0	9	:	:	:
1 10 E		T.	8:		1	15	4	1	21
	10	F.	2	Leginna	-	15	4	1	21
		M.	1000	Uniongi	:	:	:		:
	33 65	Seed	1	Learning	:	11	10	:	21
	15 30	-		The Fo	:	11	10	:	21
		1.	4	Untangi		:	:	:	:
	- 1		2	Learning	3	27	11	0.0	44
1 2	-	-	A	Large b	Teg		6		24
	30 8		18	Ha			00	:	20
టం. 1 - మ లే ం	0	-	4.1	Carge at	1	EW)	32	23	70
achin prof nRead rriting rriting	non acr	-	1 1	Untaugl			100	2	33
Appro wards encyin g, W ithme	ees.	I. I		remma	1				37
P. E. E. S.	1 50		-	rngraut	OHEA!			1	43
les,	42 I.5	T		racasi)		. 2			:
Trac						. 9	_	1	43
, to 01	17	N	1			-	_	:	14
M.	12		sacher	NO OF	s of ag	**		:	
ions.			of Te	SUTIO	years	to 1	to 1	:	
Descripti			in each	DISTRIB	nder 12	12	14	pwards	
	Trades, ciencyin Reading, Writing, Arithmetic, &c.	Approaching towards proficiency in Reading, Writing, Arithmetic, &c. in the first degrees.	Trades, ciencyin Read-ciencyin Read-ing, Writing, Arithmetic,&c. in the first degrees. M. F. T. M.	M. F. T. M. T. M.<	Trades, ciencyin Rading, Writing, Service. Approaching towards profit in the first degrees. Trades, Ciencyin Rading, Writing, Arithmetic, &c. Total. Total. M. F. T.	Trades, ing, Writing, Service. Approaching profit ing, Writing, Arithmetic, &c. Total. Total. M. F. T. M. F.	Trades, towards proficiency in Read-ling, Writing, Service. in the first degrees.	Trades, ciencyintals, rowards proficed. Approaching towards proficed. Trades, ing. Writing, arithmetic.&c. Trades, in the first degrees. Trades, in the first degrees. M. F. T. M. T. M. F. T. M	Trades, ciency and sprofile. towards profile. Trades, ing, Writing. Trades, in the first degrees. Trades. Trades.

No. 4.—continued.

Degrees of Acquirements.

-			-		-		-
Church Service.		1 4	:	:	:		:
101	Learning Singing	X		91	4	:	20
		141					
M.	Untaught.	M.	-	:	:		
CH		H	-	. 9		:	1 01
UR CE	Learning.			26	14		40 42
HH	S. S.L. one yen	M.	-	27	12	:	1 4
CHURCH CATECHISM.	reffect.	14		30	25	63	57
Perfect.		M.	:	34	25	-	60 57
٠٨٠	Learning Geograph	A		15	16	2	33
		M.	1	20	41	-	100
		H.	1.54	17	35	2	18
.viotsil	Learning English I	M.	1	57	41	-	100 78
-	Untaught.	1 1		:	:		:
ARITHMETIC.	+donetal1	M.	1 15		:		1:
LEJ	.0	1 3	-	26.	4	-	12
HW	Learning.	N. I	:	33	7		40 42
TIT	'carnar	1 6 1		303	10	23	
A.	The Four First Rules,	-			5 25		0 57
010	tonia mon odr	K	1	45	15	:	09
	Untaught.	Et.	1:	:	:	:	1:
		M. F	6	:	:	:	1:
6	Large and small Hand. Large Hand only. Learning.	14	-	15	4	-	21
WRITING.		W.	13	13	10		20
TIT		H		-	10	•	-
WE		W.	1	8	121	:	20 21
		E N					1 2
1911				30	1 25		60 57
		K	:	19	41	:	1 9
2 13	Untaught.	124	-:	20	200	pr. 100	1:
100	+donetal1	F. M.		:	3.5	910	:
i	· Surrymorr	1	-	8 15	4	F	21
Z	Learning.	i k		00	12	10.00	50
Q.	- 10	F. M.	56	26	6	5.3	12
READING,	Indifferently.		-	9	3 19		0
P.F.	E 10 :	F. M.	-	5 1	16	67	1 63
1	Fluently.		-	42 15 16	7 1	-	60 33 20 45 20 21
14 0	the state of the same of	M.	100	4	17	70	9
6 4			22				
			Under 12 years	to 14	14 to 16	Upwards	
-			12	5	to	wa	7 1
1. 27			ler	12	7	d'D	1 83
1 2 2 3 3			Ind	100	-	200	
1000			1				
-	20 10 10	1 04			-		1
	Of dull Intellect.	MI		•	-	-	:
	-	1 - 1	:	:	:	:	1 .

EDWARD RUDGE, Chaplain-Superintendent.

No. 5.

Dr.

ROPEMAKER'S ACCOUNT FOR 1863.

1863. 1 Jan. Stock on hand	£ 34 211	s. 19 1	d. 8 9
Stock on hand Dec. 31st, 1863	£246	1 14	5 0
Wages and Maintenance of Ropemaker Journeymen's Wages Incidental expenses	90	7 0 0 0	5 0 6 0
ash line 118 33 Mats (fancy) 224	£402	7	11

No. 6.

Dr.

SHOEMAKER'S ACCOUNT FOR 1863.

Stock on hand, Jan. 1st, 1863 and petty cash paid		s. 19 18	8
Stock on hand Dec. 31st, 1863	£274 38	4	0
Shoemaker's Wages and Maintenance Assistant Shoemaker's Wages Coals, Chandlery, Lights, and Sundries Profit on the Year	£236 90 65 10	13 0 0	11
7 9-901-9	£402	6	7

No. 5.

Cr.

ROPEMAKER'S ACCOUNT FOR 1863.

. 363. £ s. d. By amount credited for ropes, twine, mats, &c., 1863. 364 9 11 Loss on the year	l
AMOUNT OF WORK DONE. lbs. lbs. Sealing	TO THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR
£402 7 11	1

No. 6.

Cr.

SHOEMAKER'S ACCOUNT FOR 1863.

£	8.	d.
Boots and Shoes supplied to Bethlem with repairs 200	5	10
Ditto ditto Bridewell Hospital	0	0
Ditto ditto King Edward's Schools 202		9
AMOUNT OF WORK DONE.		
Made. te Repaired.		
Men's boots and shoes. pairs 173 788		
Women's ditto 38 45		
Pairs of strings		
Boys' hoots and shoes nairs 160 ans w 785 amands		
Girls' ditto ditto 367 m 1596		
Pairs of strings 131 doz 189% ods		

£402 6 7

No. 7.

Dr.

TAILOR'S ACCOUNT FOR 1863.

Stock on hand Jan. 1st, 1863	£ 279 505		d. 7 0
Stock on hand December 31st, 1863	784 370		7 4
rinercase of cost of Materials 66 13 0	414 90	3	3 0
Tailor's Wages and Maintenauce Journeymen Tailor's Wages	268 12	~	10
Coals, Chandlery, Light, and incidental Expenses Profit on the year after adding 10 per cent. for increase of cost of Material, and 3d. per article repaired		11	5
£790 4 6	£790	4	6

THE YEAR.	DURING	AMOUNT OF WORK DONE
Repaired.	Made	
	88	Coats
	256	Jackets Signature
1247	320	Walstoolts
1984		Trousers
88	17	THE DESIGN TO THE STATE OF THE
		Pairs of Braces

No. 7.

Cr.

TAILOR'S ACCOUNT FOR 1863.

Clothes suppl	£ s. d. ied to Bethlem with the repairs
100	and the second s
	8 11 627 Stock on hand Dechniz Est 1863
10 per cent. fe	or increase of cost of Materials 66 13 0
	Tailor's Wages and Maintenance
	Journeymen Tailor's Wages.
	Coals, Chandlery, Light, and incidental Expenses Profit on the year after adding 10 per cent for increase of cost of Material, and 3d. per article repaired
	£790 4 6

AMOUNT	OF	Work	DONE	DURING	THE YEAR	

TRINGOLIT OF ITOTAL DOLLE	TO PATTION TITLE	A A A A A B A B B B B B B B B B B B
	Made	Repaired.
Coats	68	42
Jackets	256	1223
Waistcoats	320	1247
Trousers	375	1984
Frocks	60	
Night Dresses	17	68
Pairs of Braces	220	
		4564

No. 8.

FEMALES' NEEDLEWORK, 1863.

NEW WORK.

		3			La A		328					
				dens.	8.00	d.	'no:			£	8.	đ.
	286	Shirts		at	0	6 e	ach	M feFel	0	0.7	3	0
		Chemises and Nightgov		22		4	22			6	4	0
		Petticoats .				3	22		:	3	1	6
	-0	Caps and Collars .				3		a Served ner	(a.)	6	6	0
1		Pairs of Stockings run an				2	37			10	3	2
		Handkerchiefs				1	,,			3	4	8
			16101			-	"			6	9	8
						0				35	0	0
		Gowns		7.70							19	41
	3 7 6 6 6			"		01/2					12	3
		Pairs of Shoes bound		"		1 2	"			0	7	8
	-	Pillow-cases .		"	-	1	"			0		O A
	208	Sheets and Tablecloths	D'S 8	SP	0	14	E,	DWI	M.	0	17	4

OI .oVI REPAIRS.

DAILY OCCUPATION OF THE INMATES

									0
2,842	Shirts .		Rising.	3,0	11/2 ,,		. 17 1		
431	Chemises		Guine	,, 0	1 ,,		. 11		
11.738	Handkerch	iefs, Stock	kings,		mmer	the su			
.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Aprons,				1 ,,	.80	. 48	18	2
7 115	Gowns .	b guidas	itory, w	mrob 1	lass m	prayer	. 18	1	3
							. 14	5	73
2,285	Petticoats		dedans.	,, 0	11/2 5,		. 0		11
214	Towels		office at	,, 0	01 ,,			-	
1,564	Sheets .	employe	od od av	0, 0	2 ,,	dT+-ch	0 13	0	8
487	Caps	cirron via	eda, and	0 0	1 1 1991	mi eyo	d-10002	U	-
				nen nitro	and man	o wards	Marin Company	WENDER	100000
		LOISI OI	DUBLE ZEE	GIGHLIA S.	CONCESTION !	ens m	10000000000	ommu	
	Household in n	Estimate	d Cost	of Mate	erials	e winter	28	10	0
	to rest in n	THE (8)	oupation	OU THE	i and		- di	Page 1	-
	raga redio						£169	5	0
							DIE SIER	HOLE (I	110 11

No. 9.

SUMMARY OF PROFITS ON TRADES AND NEEDLEWORK.

SUMMARI OF IROPIIS ON IRADES AND REEDBENORG.			
Rew Work	s.	d.	
Profit on the Tailor's Account 5	11	5	
Ditto ditto Shoemaker's Account 0	12	8	
Ditto ditto Girls' Needlework	5	0	1
Chemises and Nightgowns , 0 4 5 6 4 6.	345	_	
8 1 8 8 0 a stace 2175			
Losses on Ropemaker's Account	18	0	
Pairs of Stockings run and marked 0 2 3 10 3 3	018	_	
Total Profits £137	11	1	
Aprons and Pinafores , 50 2 n . 69 8	019	-	
Gowns			
Towels and Dusters , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			
Pairs of Shoes bound			
William name			

KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS.

No. 10.

DAILY OCCUPATION OF THE INMATES.

Hours of Rising.

Six o'clock in the summer months, and not later than 7 o'clock in the winter months.

After private prayer in each dormitory, washing, dressing, &c.

On Week-days.

Until 8 o'clock.—The Trades-boys to be employed at their Trade, and the School-boys in making the beds, and sweeping and cleaning the dormitories and other apartments on the male side. The girls selected for employment in the Laundry and Kitchen, and in Household Work to be engaged in their particular occupations, and the rest in making beds and sweeping and cleaning the dormitories and other apartments on the female side.

From 8 to 9 o'clock. - Prayers, breakfast and recreation.

From 9 to 1 o'clock (except Saturdays)—Trades-boys at their trades from 9 to 12, and in School from 12 to 1, except three boys employed as bakers, who shall attend School two hours every afternoon.

School-boys in school from 9 to 2 before 12 o'clock, and in occupation from 12 to 1 under the Arts-masters, as the Superintendent shall direct.

Girls selected for particular employments to be at their respective occupations from 9 to 1 o'clock, as the Matron shall direct; and on alternate days at school during the same hours.

From 1 to 2 o'clock - Dinner and recreation.

From 2 to 6 o'clock (except Saturday)—Trades-boys at their trades. School-boys at school from 2 till 5 o'clock, and from 5 till 6 o'clock in occupation, as the Superintendent shall direct.

Girls selected for particular employments to be at their respective occupations, and the rest at needlework, from half-past 2 till 5 o'clock, and in occupation from 5 till 6 o'clock, as the Matron shall direct.

From 6 to 74 o'clock-Supper and recreation.

From 7\frac{3}{4} to 8 o'clock—Prayer.

On Saturdays.

No school to be kept, either in the morning or afternoon, and no Trades-boys to be required to work at their trades after 12 o'clock. The inmates on this day to be engaged in cleaning the establishment, assorting and distributing clean linen, using the bath, and in such other occupations as the Superintendent and Matron shall respectively direct. The recreation of the inmates to be, when the weather will permit, in the airing-grounds, and at other times in the day-rooms, which are to be provided with suitable books for amusement and instruction.

On Sundays, redto to sectate !

Until 8 o'clock—The inmates to be occupied in making beds, changing linen, and delivering up all that is dirty, and preparing for the proper spending of the day.

From 8 to 10 o'clock-Breakfast and walking in the airing-grounds, when the weather will permit:

From 10 to 11 o'clock-In school-rooms, reading the Lessons for the day, repeating Catechism, and answering questions on scriptural subjects.

From 11 to 1 o'clock—In Chapel for Morning Service and Sermon.

1 o'clock—Dinner.

1½ to 3½ o'clock-In the day-rooms and airing-courts.

3½ o'clock—Afternoon Service in Chapel and Sermon.

7 o'clock-Supper. as stotametra edt rebnu 1 of 21 mort moltag

8 o'clock-Bed-time.

From 2 to 6 o'clock -Dinner and recreating. No. 12.

Sonupstions from 9 to 1 o'clock as the Metron sh-

DIETARY TABLE.

BREAKFASTS.

	Learning the rest at needlework, from half-past 2 to
	Hade nortald odt as Asols's 3 His d mc Class 1. Class 2.
	Exact to Tao check—Supper and recreation.
Daily	Milk and Water, and Bread 6
	Butter 18 - 1001 10 8
	DINNER.
Sunday	Boiled Beef
	Dicad 4 4
actorsio done	rotatoes or other vegetables.
Monday	
	bread 4 4
Tuesday	Cheese 1 1 Mutton, Boiled or Roasted 6 5
Thousand	Bread 4 4
	Potatoes or other Vegetables.
Wednesday	In Summer, Baked Rice Pudding 7
the manuer	In Winter, Soup with Peas, Rice, Barley,
	or Lentiles.
	Bread 6 6
Thursday	Boiled Suet Pudding 8 8
	Bread 4
lerutqiros	Cheese
Friday	Same as Tuesday.

	QUAN'	TITIES.
	Class 1.	Class 2.
Saturday Rice Milk,	oz.	oz.
Bread Butter AND SEcond NTS	74 T	214
Table Beer, (boys) daily, half a pint for Dinner,		
for Supper.		
Class 1, comprises all the Boys above fourteen years	of age.	
Class 2, all the Girls, and such Boys as are under four		
The Meat is reckoned in weight after it is cooked.		
0 0 08 30 0 0		
O O AS SUPPERS.		
0 0 001 tnebmein		
Daily Bread		
0 0 0SI CheesedirageO.hu		
O O Od Table Beer, half a pint for boys only.		
The six Kitchen Girls have Tea daily, at for		
O Twenty Laundry Girls have Tea on Monday		
O O Three Mangling Girls daily.		
Instead of Beer for Supper, the Girls have one pint of		-
0 0 8 8 0 0		Do. Oi
man) 27s. per week 70 & 0		
70 0 0		
Governts and Automators daily three questions of a	Mistres	of most
Servants and Artsmasters, daily three quarters of a	Pound	or meat,

Servants and Artsmasters, daily three quarters of a pound of meat, (cooked). Potatoes or other Vegetables. Beer, one quart. Three quarters of a pound of butter, one pound of cheese, eight pounds of bread per week, (if required). Two pounds of flour once in three weeks (Artsmasters). Two ounces of tea, one pound of raw sugar per week.

* Neither boarded nor lodged.

† Lodged only.

The Female Monitors to dine together, apart from the other children and at a different time, their dinner being cooked separately, when practicable, by the monitors themselves in rotation, for the purpose of increasing their experience in cooking as practised in private families, but being in accordance with the diet allowed, except on Saturdays when it shall be Meat-pie.

KING EDWARD'S SCHOOLS.

LIST OF OFFICERS AND SERVANTS.

Table Bear, (boys) daily, balf a pint for Dinner, and balf a pint

mprises all the Boys shove fourteen years of age.	1000	s.	d.
*1 Chaplain and Superintendent	400	0	0
*1 Surgeon	20	0	0
*1 Clerk, &c	30	0	0
*1 Steward's Clerk	24	0	0
†1 Deputy Superintendent	100	0	0
†1 Matron	120	0	0
†1 Schoolmaster and Organist	120	0	0
\$1 Ropemaker view. wood not string a flad spott of lat.	50	0	0
*1 Ropemaker (journeyman) A.R. avad. 110 25s. per week	65	0	0
\$1 Shoemaker value M seT. avail shift young I. whom	150	0	0
*1 Assistant ditto		0	0
ear for Support the Girls have one piet of Cooper to Tallorate	50	0	0
Do. Chapel Clerk	5	0	0
*1 Tailor (journeyman)	70	4	0
*1 Schoolmistress	70	0	0
1 Sewing Mistress (boarded and lodged)	20	0	0
1 Cook (boarded and lodged)	20	0	0
1 Laundress (boarded and lodged) 1989 10 8001810	20	0	0
+1 Gate Portress	6	10	0
1 Band Master and Drill Sergeant (boarded and lodged)	40	0	0
Two ounces of tea, one pound of raw sugar per week.	345	14	0
201	UTU	14	U

^{*} Neither boarded nor lodged.

practicable, by the monitors themselves in rotation, for the purpose of increasing their experience in cooking as practised in private families, but being in accordance with the diet allowed, except on Saturdays

⁺ Lodged only.

[‡] In addition to board and lodging, have each a suit of clothes and a bat per annum.

THIEM HOSSITAL

REPORT

Worshipful the PRESIDENT, the Worshipful the TREASURER, and the Governous of the Royal Hospital of Bethlem.

Y LORDS AND GENTLEMEN.

I have the honour to present you with the Heport of its Hospital for the year 1863, and also with the Statiscal Tables according to the usual form.

During the year, one hundred and sixty-seven patients were admitted on the Curable Establishment, and eight of the Criminal Department, pursuant to their respective variants. On the 1st of January, 1864, there were remaining in the Hospital, three hundred and twenty-fine respectations, classified thus;—

	Males.	
	34	

BETHLEM HOSPITAL.

REPORT.

To the Right Worshipful the President, the Worshipful the Treasurer, and the Governors of the Royal Hospital of Bethlem.

MY LORDS AND GENTLEMEN,

I have the honour to present you with the Report of this Hospital for the year 1863, and also with the Statistical Tables according to the usual form.

During the year, one hundred and sixty-seven patients were admitted on the Curable Establishment, and eight into the Criminal Department, pursuant to their respective warrants. On the 1st of January, 1864, there were remaining in the Hospital, three hundred and twenty-five patients, classified thus:—

	Males.	Females.	Total.
Curable	 60	84	144
Incurable	 34	34	68
Criminal	 112	1	113
	206	119	325

The hundred and seventy-five patients admitted were as follows:—

	Males.	Females.	Total.
Curable	64	103	167
Criminal	8	0	8
	72	103	175

Of the hundred and forty-four Curable patients discharged, there were:—

	Males.	Females.	Total.
Cured	36	56	92
Uncured	19	25	44
Special reasons	101	7	8
	56	88	144

There were also removed, by order of the Secretary of State, three male criminals. With one exception the whole of the female criminals were removed, in May last, to the new Criminal Lunatic Asylum at Broadmoor, and the Government building formerly occupied by them is now out of use. It is anticipated that warrants will soon be received for the removal of about eighty male criminal lunatics. The one female patient who still remains in the Hospital was retained by the Secretary of State, on the recommendation of the Committee, in consequence of her being blind and aged.

The nineteen patients who died were :-

		Males.	Females.	Total.
Curable		5	7	12
Incurable		1	1	2
Criminal		5	0	5
	12344	11	8	19

Two patients were discharged in consequence of no account having been given of them by their friends after they had left the Hospital on leave of absence for a month; and it may be stated, that in both cases applications were again and again made for a report of their health, so that they might, if recovered, have been eligible for re-admission in case of a relapse; but these requests were entirely disregarded.

Four of the patients discharged for special reasons were removed by their friends, judiciously, with the hope that a change might prove conducive to their recovery; and three were removed contrary to the strongest advice of the Committee and Medical Officers.

A tragic result occurred in the case of one female, who had been resident in the Hospital twelve months, and was removed by her friends, who were quite aware of her suicidal disposition, and appeared in a position to afford her all necessary protection. For two months before leaving she had improved very much, both in her mental and bodily health, and the Committee felt justified in allowing her to go to her home for a month's leave of absence. About three weeks after she left, she committed suicide by taking a large dose of the essential oil of almonds, carelessly supplied to her by a chemist in the neighbourhood.

It is a subject of the greatest congratulation and thankfulness, that another year has passed without any casualty or accident of the slightest importance having occurred to any of the patients within the Establishment, and that there has been no attempt at suicide. This immunity from disaster may mainly be attributed to the care and vigilance of the attendants in charge of the several wards.

It is worthy of remark, that the class of patients treated in the Hospital are peculiarly objects of anxiety, since, of the number of patients admitted during the year, eighty were reported, by the medical men who signed the certificates for their admission, to be suicidal. (Vide Table XV.)

By reference to Table No. XIX. it will be noticed, that a considerable number of the patients reported to have died during the year were very advanced in years, and that ten died of diseases totally unconnected with mental derangement. Four cases of death from acute mental disorder occurred within a very few days of their admission,—the patients being in such an exhausted condition when brought to the Hospital, consequent upon the excitement under which they had been suffering, that little or no hope of their recovery was entertained from the first,—and they were really received because it was feared that the fatigue of a further journey, even for a short distance, might immediately prove fatal.

Although cases of general paralysis are ineligible for admission according to the Rules of the Hospital, three cases are reported to have died from that disease during the year. The symptoms at the time of their reception were so masked, that a doubt existed as to whether they were suffering from that form of disorder; and it has

always been the expressed wish of the Committee of the Hospital, that, where there is the least doubt on the matter, the applicant should have the benefit of it, and they were consequently admitted. At the present time there are several inmates suffering from this disease, whose recovery is hopeless, but who will have the advantage of remaining the full term of residence allowed to curable patients.

It cannot be too strongly impressed upon every mind how much a favourable result in the treatment of the insane depends on early and judicious management: this can rarely be obtained to its full extent except in an Institution specially adapted for the purpose. Though this advice is continually urged by all the Superintendents of the various Asylums in the Country, yet it is painfully manifest what an indisposition exists in the friends of patients to realise the truth of the fact, that by permitting delay the prospects of recovery are greatly diminished, and very often rendered hopeless. This loss of opportunity for treatment, at the most important stage of disease, can only be accounted for by supposing that a false notion exists, that by becoming an inmate of an Asylum a person incurs an ineradicable social stain.

It may be worthy of mention, that many eligible cases are annually admitted into this Hospital by the power vested in the Commissioners in Lunacy to order a transfer of an insane person from one Asylum to another, when they may deem such a removal expedient; and it is frequently the case that these persons come from private Asylums, their friends having ceased to be in a

position to defray the cost of their further maintenance. It so happens that in these cases, as a rule, the disease has existed for a considerable period, and has assumed a chronic character, and recovery is very rare.

Through the liberality of the Governors a number of patients of both sexes have again had the privilege of spending several weeks at the seaside, accompanied by trustworthy attendants. The advantages they derived from the change of air and scene were considerable; and no single circumstance occurred to cause regret that such indulgence had been granted. Although their enjoyment whilst absent was very great, yet, on the expiration of their holiday, they all appeared delighted to return to their old home in Bethlem.

In addition to these special indulgences, numerous opportunities have been afforded of visiting places of public amusement, both scientific and otherwise,—Exhibitions, the Crystal Palace, Cattle Show, &c.,—the situation of the Hospital having afforded facilities for such purposes. The following extract from the Report of the Commissioners in Lunacy, on their late visit to the Hospital, shews the extent of liberty which has been afforded during the last twelve months:—

"We are informed that, of the whole number of inmates, eighty-eight are allowed to take exercise beyond the precincts of the Hospital, and passes enabling patients to enjoy this privilege were granted on 1,311 occasions."

Very few changes have been made amongst the at-

tendants during the year,—the most satisfactory proof that could be given of the way in which they have performed their respective duties, and that the confidence reposed in them has not been abused. One of the few changes was caused by the resignation of an attendant in consequence of failing health, who had been a servant of the Hospital for twenty-eight years. The Governors have kindly recognised her long and faithful services by granting her a retiring annuity.

The President and other Governors and friends have, during the last year, most liberally presented the Hospital with really valuable works of art, prints, books, and articles of amusement. The interest thus shown in the welfare of the inmates cannot but tend to increase the kindly feeling which naturally arises between the recipients of a bounty and the donors, and in many instances may have the effect of re-awakening, in minds dulled by disease, a sense of gratitude, and so eventually lead to complete mental restoration.

In addition to the usual evening amusements, such as balls and other social gatherings, we have been frequently favoured with readings from the poets and comic writers, by a gentleman who kindly volunteered his services. These readings have been much enjoyed, and highly appreciated by large audiences, as was evident by the hearty applause with which the Reader has been greeted whenever he appeared.

A beneficial change has been made during the past year by our Chaplain, in the performance of Divine Service in the Chapel. He has instituted a Weekly Class to practice Church Singing, and has been able to introduce Chanting with great success in our Sunday Services. The patients join very heartily in the responses, and seem to appreciate the alteration.

In conclusion, I feel very deeply how much my own duties have been lightened by the kind assistance and co-operation of all my brother officers; and I am sure the Governors will be gratified, that the same good feeling which has marked our association for so many years past, still exists.

To the Committee my thanks are especially due for their liberality and consideration in adopting any suggestion I may have made, and helping me in every difficulty.

I desire to assure the Governors that I shall continue to use my best energies to the advantage of the patients under my care, and for the maintenance of the credit of this Royal Hospital.

I have the honour to be,

My Lords and Gentlemen,

Your very obedient and obliged Servant,

W. HELPS, M.D.

January 22nd, 1864.

TABLES.

INDEX TO TABLES.

No.		Page
1	Patients admitted and discharged	41
2	Average number of patients in the Hospital, attending	
	chapel, and under restraint, during the last twenty-three	
	years	42
3	Total number of curable patients admitted into Bethlem	
	Hospital during 100 years, ending the 31st December,	
	1863, with the amount of cures and deaths	42
4	Annual admissions, cures, and deaths, of curable patients	
	during the last 43 years	43
5	Form of mental disease	44
6	Monthly admissions, cures, and deaths	44
7	Ages	45
8	Duration of disease before admission	45
9	Degree of education	46
10	Religious persuasion	46
11	Domestic condition	47
12	Residence	47
13	State of general health	48
14	Behaviour	48
15	Suicidal tendency	49
16	Number of previous attacks	49
17	Apparent or assigned causes	50, 51
18	Occupation of curable patients admitted during 1863	52
18	", discharged cured in 1863	53
18	,, discharged uncured in 1863.	54
18	,, who died in 1863	55
19	Particulars of patients who have died during the year 1863,	
	as reported to the Bethlem Sub-Committee	56
20	Return of employment, June 30th, 1863	57
21	Females employed on June 30th, 1863	57
22	Time in Hospital	58
23	Patients cured	59
24	Daily average number of patients in the Hospital during	
	the year 1863	60
25	Return of the incurable patients now in the Hospital. 61,	62, 63
26	Time the incurable pstients have been in Hospital	64
27	Degree of education of incurable patients in the Hospital	64
28	Synopsis of offences of the criminal lunatics confined in	-
	Bethlem Hospital, 31st December, 1863	65
21	Time the criminal patients have been in the Hospital	65

No. 1.

PATIENTS ADMITTED AND DISCHARGED.

			37	175	512	844		61	22	:0	325	512
	-	-	337			-		7	22.75			
	Total.	-	132	103	235	255	:	-	19	:00	119	235
		M.	202	72	277	37	:	-	61	::	206	277
	uls.	T.	132	00	140	7::	:	2:	21	: 10	.:	140
	Criminals.	P.	20	:	20	:::	:		19	::	:-	20
During 1863.	Cr	M.	112	00	120	-::	in	delb b	CA 107	. 10	112	120
uring	les.	4	70	:	70	and on	83100 2007	orthorn	to rad	: 63	: 89	20
a	Incurables	P.	35	:	35	. : : :				:-	3.4	35
	Inc	M.	35	:	35	30 16		:00	I gotor	ET.	: 8	35
		T.	185	191	303	92 4 x	:	64	in alice	13:	144	305
	Curables	F.	77	103	180	50.00	:	1	in all it		: %	180
	Cn		28	64	122	36	27	-		: 10	.: 09	122
		Ŧ.	200	92901	92801	5279 2698 318	962	95	364	815	333	92801
	Total.	P.	102	6126	6228	3267 1733 175	426	65	40	388	130	6228
Between the Years 1820 and 1862 inclusive.		M.	86	4550	4648	2012 965	536	30	324	427	203	4648
62 in	als.	T.	20	726	222	138		STORES IN	362	134		922
nd 18	Criminals.	E.	6	114	123	37	:	Third o	40	1 24	20	123
320 al	2	N.	4	612	653	101	::		322	110	.:	653
ars 18	oles.	4	69	239	308	3 4 3	9	-	partient.	140	70:	308
e Ye	Incurables.	2	4	129	170	82 4 6	2 :	-	mage M	: 82	: 55	170
en th	F	N.	88	110	138	10 :0	9	STATE OF	to be	62	: 55	138
Betwe	00	÷	81	11126	9792	5099 2691	926	94	Ol .	541	131	9792 138 170 308 653
	Curables.	F.	52	5883	5935	3198 1729	426	19	lemon .	286	3.10	5935
		M.	29	3828	3857	1901	530	30	64	255	999	3857
		Remained in Hospi-	tal 1st Jan. 1820, including those out on leave of absence	Admitted during the years 1820 to 1862	THE	Discharged— Cured Uncured	Disqualified	on leave of absence, and no account since	ind. by	Escaped		4

No. 2.

AVERAGE NUMBER OF PATIENTS in the HOSPITAL, attending Chapel, and under restraint, during the last Twenty-three years.

During the Year.	Number of Patients.	Sunday Chapel Attendance.	Weekly average of Patients under restraint.
I Ball	20	66 69 186	
1841	341	801, or 23.60 per cent.	9, or 2.64 per cent.
1842	369	139, or 37.66 per cent.	
1843	367	181, or 49.31 per cent.	
1844	359	164*, or 46.45 per cent.	
1845	403	4	$\frac{2}{3}$, or 0.17 per cent.
1846	395	+ }	$1\frac{1}{3}$, or .06 per cent.
1847	392	147, or 37.50 per cent.	$\frac{1}{4}$, or .05 per cent.
1848	399	138, or 34.58 per cent.	73 or 0.5 per cent.
1849	406	138, or 33.9 per cent.	$\frac{63}{365}$, or .04 per cent.
1850	391	147, or 37.59 per cent.	$\frac{37}{365}$, or 0.25 per cent.
1851	388	133, or 34.28 per cent.	None.
1852	374	132, or 35.56 per cent.	None.
1853	343	141, or 41.1 per cent.	None.
1854	311	159, or 51.1 per cent.	None.
1855	334	170, or 51.50 per cent.	None.
1856	340	179, or 52.64 per cent.	None.
1857	321	171, or 53.27 per cent.	None.
1858	354	192, or 54.23 per cent.	None.
1859	353	195, or 55.21 per cent.	None,
1860	341	194, or 56.86 per cent.	None.
1861	344	192, or 55.80 per cent.	None.
1862	327	180, or 55.04 per cent.	None.
1863	333	177, or 53.15 per cent.	None.
		764 42 617	

AVERAGE DAILY NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED.

* To 30th June, when the enlargement of the Chapel was begun.

† Partially suspended during the enlargement of the Chapel.

No. 3.

TOTAL NUMBER of CURABLE PATIENTS admitted into BETHLEM HOSPITAL during One Hundred Years, ending the 31st December, 1863, with the amount of Cures and Deaths.

Total number of Patients admitted 19,567.

No. 4.

Annual Admissions, Cures, and Deaths of Curable
Patients during the last Forty-three years.

		dmitted			Cured.	three ye		Died	1.
Year.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.
1821	58	77	135	22	21	43	1	5	6
1822	55	110	165	22	44	66	5	6	11
1823	57	88	145	21	51	72	4	1	5
1824	65	90	155	23	36	59	1	5	6
1825	72	98	170	30	40	70	6		12
1826	67	95	162	24	46	70	1	5 3	6
1827	64	85	149	26	38	64	6	3	9
1828	87	117	204	43	68	111	5	1	6
1829	78	117	195	56	70	126	6	4	10
1830	83	118	201	36	74	110	2	4	6
1831	81	131	212	35	63	98	5	i	6
1832	62	101	163	23	69	92	2	3	5
1833	61	123	184	25	55	80	1	4	5
1834	102	116	218	49	65	114	8	2	10
1835	111	145	256	36	74	110	5	8	13
1836	109	144	253	50	85	135	9	11	20
1837	119	177	296	61	94	155	9	8	
1838	107	163	270	58	120	178	6	9	17
1839	104	181	285	54	83	137		8	15
1840	127	181	308	72	108		9		17
1841	101	165	266	58	99	180	4	8	12
1842	127	195	322	57		157	13	11	24
1843	109	175	284	56	105	162	8	7	15
1844	118	168	286	58	103	159	8	11	19
1845	110	205	315	62	70 118	128	6	13	19
1846	125	168	293	66	95	180	8	7	15
1847	124	190	314	68	107	161 175	2	4	6
1848	118	188	306	74	82	156	3	9	12
1849	124	192	316	66	106	172	6	9	11
1850	135		344		123	197	20	12	18
1851	112	174	286	1	69		9	11 17	31
1852	101	167	268	49	94	143	15	12	26
1853	72	128	200	38	75	113	9	7	27
1854	77	110	187	40	70	110	4	7	16
1855	78	137	215	48	84	132	5	7	11
1856	61	110	171	41	70	111	3	3	12
1857	82	127	209	46	69	115	4		6
1858	68	142	210	33	79	112	7		10
1859	58	100	158	38	60	98	7	2	12
1860	75	116	191	41	62	103	5	3	10
1861	60	106	166		67	94	5	5	10
1862	71	92	163	27	48		6	9	15
1863	64	103		The second second		80	6	4	10
1000			167	36	56	92	5	7	12
	3839	5924	9763	1926	3215	5141	256	288	544

No. 5.

FORM OF MENTAL DISEASE.

Admi	tted			1	gues.		Di	scha	rged.			
Admi	iicu				Cure	d.	U	neu	red.		Die	d.
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.
Acute Mania	11	20	31	11	14	25		4	4	1	3	4
Chronic Mania	19	18	37	7	8	15	4	8	12			
Recurrent or Intermittent Mania	3	2	5	2		2						
Acute Melan-	16	39	55	11	21	32		6	6	3		3
Dementia	14	15	29	5	6	11	9	5	14		4	4
Puerperal Mania		6	6		7	7		1	1			
GeneralParalysis	1	3	4				6	1	7	1		1
THE SHEET ST	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 6.

Time of Admission and Discharge of Curable Patients.

Admi	hatt						D	ischa	rged			
Admi	neu.				Cur	ed.	J	Jncu	red.	-	Die	d.
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.
January	5	4	9	3	3	6		6	6			
February	2	10	12	2	3	5	1	2	3			
March	5	10	15	4	5	9	1		1		2	2
April	7	11	18	6	1	7	1	1	1		1.	
May	1	7	8	5	2	7	3	2	5		2	2
June	7	11	18	1	4	5		4	4		.:	
July	4	10	14		7	7	3	3	6	1	1	2
August	8	15	23	2	6	8		2	2		1	1
September	5	6	11	3	4	7	3		3			
October	10	2	12	2	9	11	4	3	7	3	1	4
November	5	10	15	3	4	7	2		2			
December	5	7	12	5	8	13	1	3	4	1	••	1
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 7. Ages.

Admitt	ha			1			Disc	harg	ged.			
Admitt	cu.				Cure	d	U	ncur	ed.		Died	1.
	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T
Under 15 years												
From 15 to 20	2	8	10	4	7	11	2		2			
— 20 to 25	7	11	18	4	8	12	2	1	3			
— 25 to 30	9	11	20	7	9	16	3	4	7		1	1
— 30 to 35	7	11	18	2 5	9	11	2	4	6		3	3
— 35 to 40	12	17	29		7	12	6	2	8	1		1
- 40 to 45	5	12	17	5	3	8	1	7	8	1	1	2
- 45 to 50	5	14	19	3	7	10		6	6			
— 50 to 55	3	5	8	5	3	8	1	1	2			
- 55 to 60	7	9	16	1	2	3	1		1			
— 60 to 65	2	4	6		1	1	1		1			
— 65 to 70	4	1	5							2		2
— 70 to 75	1		1							1	2	3
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 8.

Duration of Disease before Admission.

Admit	ed.		20.00		3000	Disa	Disc	char	ged.	ly an	OT	
					Cure	d.	U	ncur	ed.		Died	
18 38 18 18	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.
Under 1 month - 2 - 3 - 4 - 5 - 6 - 7 - 8 - 9 - 10 - 11	32 16 7 3 2 1 1 1	43 20 12 8 4 8 3 4 	75 36 19 11 6 9 3 5 1	22 7 2 2 1 1 1	32 7 7 4 3 3	54 14 9 6 1 4 3 1	8 5 2 1 1 1	6 6 5 3 1 1 1 1 1 1	14 11 7 3 2 2 1 2	3 2	5 1 1 	8 3
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 9.

Degree of Education.

Admit	ted						Di	scha	rged.			
1441111	·····				Cure	d.	U	neur	ed.		Die	d.
	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	Т.	М.	F.	T.
Superior	3	5	8	2	3	5		1	1		1	1
Good	27	36	63	13	18	31	7	7	14	2	2	4
Moderate	34	61	95	21	34	55	11	17	28	3	4	7
Indifferent		1	1		1	1	1		1			
The state of	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 10.
Religious Persuasion.

Admit	ted			1			Di	schar	rged.			
Aumi	icu.				Cure	ed.	U	neui	red.		Die	d.
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.
	-	-	-	-	-	71.11	-	-				
Church of England	48	79	127	28	43	71	18	20	38	3	6	9
Congrega- tionalist	1	4	5	1		1						
Wesleyan	6	9	15	2	7	9		1	1	1		1
Baptist	6	4	10	3	2	5		1	1			
Roman Ca-	1	1	2	1	2	3				1		1
tholic S Unitarian		1	1									
Episcopalian.	1	2	3		1	1						
Plymouth ?	1		1	1		1						
Presbyterian		1	1		1	1		1	1			
Hebrew		2	2				.:	1	1		1	1
Calvinist							1	.;	1			
Lutheran								1				
45 8 4 4 3	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 11.

DOMESTIC CONDITION.

Admit	hat						Dis	schai	rged.	1		
Admit						d.	U	neur	red.		Die	1.
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	Т,	М.	F.	T.
Married	38	54	92	19	27	46	9	10	19	4	5	9
Single	25	42	67	14	28	42	10	14	24		2	2
Widowed	1	7	8	3	1	4	181	1	1	1		1
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 12.

RESIDENCE.

Admit	ted.						Di	schai	rged.			
-	····				Cure	d.	U	neur	ed.	1 10	Died	1.
	M.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	т.	М.	F.	T.
London and its immediate Neighbourhood	34	66	100	22	37	59	10	13	23	2	6	8
Provinces	30	37	67	14	19	33	9	12	21	3	1	4
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 13.
State of General Health.

Admi	tted		118		14		Dis					
724111	occu.			(Cure	d.	U	neur	ed.		d.	
18 0 3	М.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	Т.	М.	F.	T.
Good	39	69	108	30	39	69	7	16	23			
Bad	25	34	59	6	17	23	12	9	21	5	7	12
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 14.

BEHAVIOUR.

Admit	ted.						Dis	char	ged.			
					Cure	d.	U	neur	ed.	Dead.		
	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.	М.	F.	T.
Dangerous or violent to others	40	36	76	14	15	29	7	7	14	3	1	4
No indication of being dangerous or violent to others	24	67	91	22	41	63	12	18	30	2	6	8
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12

No. 15. Suicidal Tendency.

Admit	had			1	Discharged												
Admitt	eu.				Cure	d.	U	neu	red.	Died.							
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	Т.					
Patients who have meditated or attempted suicide	28	52	80	10	28	38	5	9	14	3	2	5					
Those who have not manifested a suicidal tendency	36	51	87	26	28	54	14	16	30	2	5	7					
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12					

No. 16.
Number of Previous Attacks.

Admit	ted.			1		•	Di	schai	rged.				
					Cure	d.	1	Jncui	red.	Died.			
	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	T.	
First	41	65	106	26	36	62	15	19	34	4	5	9	
Second	10	24	34	5	9	14	4	4	8		2	2	
Third	4	6	10	2	4	6		2	2	1		1	
Fourth	5	3	8		2	2							
Fifth		4	4		4	4							
Sixth	2		2										
Several	2	1	3	3	1	1							
	64	103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12	

No. 17.

Apparent or Assigned Causes.

			1				132			-	-	-
Admitted				-			-	char	-			
				C	ured		Uı	icur	ed.		Died	l
	M.	F.	T.	М.	F	T.	M.	F.	T.	M.	F.	
										-	1	
bernde	6									100		
										Party No.		1
MORAL.			75.4									-
Mental anxiety	4	8	12	3	3	6	2	1	3			
Disappointment	2	3	5	1		1						
Disappointment in love		3	3		1	1		1	1			1:
Reduced circumstances		3	10	4	1	5	1	1	2	1		1
Excessive study	2	1	3		1	1	1		1			
Religious excitement	6	4	10	4	2	6		2	2	1		1
Excitement from other		3	7	0	2	5	0	,	3	,		1
Causes	1	2	7 3	2	3 2	5 2	2	1	1	1		
Fright	3	4	7		3	3	1	1	2			1
	2	4	6	1	1	2	1		1		1	1
Domestic unhappiness	-	4	0	1	1	-	1		1			
	-											
	1	10										
	1		1	1113					-			
												1
						1					-	
	1			1 30				1			-	
	1	1	1					1	-		-	
NE MARKET DE BUILD		1	1	1	1						-	1
			-					-				
PHYSICAL.	1				1	1			1	1		
		-	-			1						
Intemperance	4	4	8	3	1	4	1		1			
Masturbation			8	6		6	3		3	1		1
Natural imbecility			1				1		1			
Uterine disturbance		12	12	1	7	7		3	3			
Puerperal causes		9	9		8	8		1	1		1	1
Disease of liver			1	1		1			1.			
Fever		1	1		1	1		1	1			2.
Disease of brain	i	2	3		1	1			1.	1		1
Acute rheumatism		1	1								1	1
Small pox		1	1		1	1	1					
- In the second	1	1		1	1	1			1	1	1	

No. 17-continued.

APPARENT OR ASSIGNED CAUSES.

Admitted.							Dis	cha	rged.				
Aumitted.	11 3			C	ure	d.	U	ncur	ed.	Died.			
	М.	F.	т.	М.	F.	Т.	M.	F.	T.	М.	F	T.	
Previous attacks Hereditary Not traceable, probably idiopathic, no cause having been manifested, nor hereditary taint discovered	6		19 18	4 3	10 6	14 9	3 2	4 5	7 7 5		2 1	2 1	
Cases where hereditary tendency has existed but combined with other causes, specified above		103	167	36	56	92	19	25	44	5	7	12	

No. 18.

OCCUPATION OF CURABLE PATIENTS admitted during 1863.

MALES.		FEMALES.
Physician	1 2 1	Wives, widows, or daughters of professional men } 4
Schoolmaster Land Surveyor	1 1 10 2 1	Wives, widows, or daughters of clerks or tradesmen
Stationers	2 1 3	nics, or labourers
Coach Builder	1 2 2 1	Governesses
Fishmonger Porter Bootmaker Hotel Keeper	1 1 1	Dressmakers 5 Milliners 6 Domestic Servants 20
FarmersGrocers	5 2	
Furrier Perfumers Baker Tailors	1 2 1 2	
Plumbers	2 3 1	
Blacksmith	4 1 1	
Cabman	1 64	103

No. 18-continued.

OCCUPATION OF CURABLE PATIENTS discharged Cured during 1863.

MALES.	FEMALES.
Surgeons 2	Wives, widows, or daugh-
Solicitor 1	ters of professional men 5
Medical Student 1	Wives, widows, or daugh-)
Schoolmaster 1	ters of clerks or trades- 21
Clerks 7	men
Hotelkeeper 1	Wives, widows, or daugh-
Farmers 3	ters of servants, mecha-
Commercial Traveller 1	nics, or labourers J
Draper 1	Artist 1
Jeweller 1	Governesses 2
Compositor 1	Housekeepers 3
Stationer 1	Milliners 4
Corn Factor 1	Dressmakers 3
Silk Weaver 1	Shoebinder 1
Grocer 1	Shopkeepers 3
Furrier 1	Domestic Servants 10
Plumbers 2	A
Carpenters 2	**************************************
Servants 3	S Section of State
Blacksmith 1	Plustians
Cab Driver 1	Compositor
Porter 1	Herrania
Baker 1	I disrafoalta
36	1
90	56

No. 18-continued.

OCCUPATION OF CURABLE PATIENTS discharged Uncured during 1863.

MALES.		FEMALES.	
Clerks	6 1 1	Wives, widows, or daugh- ters of clerks or trades- men	7
Cabinetmaker Perfumer	1 1	Wives, widows, or daughters of servants, mechanics, or labourers	3
Lodginghouse-keeper	1	Governesses	1
Wood Carver	1	Schoolmistresses	2
Coach Builder	1	Housekeepers	4
Shoemaker	1	Milliners	2
Blacksmith	1	Domestic Servants	6
Domestic Servants	2		
Labourer			
	19	S	25

No. 18-continued.

OCCUPATION OF CURABLE PATIENTS who Died during 1863.

MALES.	FEMALES.
Compositor 1	Wife of Sailor 1
Warehouseman 1	Governess 1
Sailor 1	Schoolmistress 1
Confectioner 1	Dressmaker 1
Servant 1	Servants 3
5	7

No. 19.

PARTICULARS of PATIENTS who have DIED during the Year 1863, as reported to the Bethlem Sub-Committee.

1	Sex.	Age	Condition.	Admitted.	Died.	Cause of Death.
1	Male	65	Criminal .	31st May, 1860	8th Jan., 1863	Chronic Bronchitis.
2	Male	48	Incurable	3rd Jan , 1851	13th Jan., ,,	Tubercular disease
3	Female	72	Curable.	4th Nov , 1862	7th Mar. ,,	of the lungs. Decay of Old Age.
4	Female	33	Curable	11th Dec., 1862	21st Mar. "	Granular disease of
5	Male	37	Criminal.	5th Nov , 1861	21st April "	the kidneys. General paralysis.
6	Fem e	34	Curable	30th April, 1863	17th May ,,	Exhaustion follow-
7	Female	70	Curable	9th July, 1857	23rd May ,,	ing acute mania. Exhaustion follow- ing great mental
8	Male	76	Criminal.	6th Jan., 1817	15th July ,,	excitement. Natural decay of
9	Male	33	Criminal.	19th June, 1856	22nd July ,,	Old Age. Apoplexy.
10	Female	42	Curable.	22nd Sept., 1862	24th July ,,	General Dropsy and
			031	fotoT	091	Ganular Disease of kidneys
11	Male	66	Curable	15th Dec., 1862	29th July ,,	General Dropsy and Granular Disease
12	Female	60	Incurable	3rd Mar., 1843	5th Aug.	of kidneys. General Debility.
13	Male	70	Criminal.	11th Oct., 1862	15th Aug. "	General paralysis.
14	Female	32	Curable	10th Aug., 1863	17th Aug. ,,	Exhaustion follow-
15	Male	38	Curable	21st Aug., 1863	14th Oct ,,	ing acute mania. General paralysis.
16	Female	29	Curable	28th May, 1863	17th Oct. ,,	Tulercular disease
17	Male	70	Curable	5th Aug., 1863	18th Oct. "	of the lungs. Disease of the heart.
18	Male	43	Curable	21st Oct., 1863	28th Oct. "	Exhaustion follow-
19	Male	66	Curable	22nd Oct., 1863	31st Dec. "	ing acute mania. Exhaustion follow-
-				-> -		ing acute melan- cholia.

No. 20.
RETURN of EMPLOYMENT, June 30th, 1863.

							1	IAL	ES										
GALLERIES.	Gardener. Mason.	Plasterer.	Bricklayer.	Painter and Glazier.	Carpenter.	Engineer & Simui.	Shoemaker.	Knitting and Glove Making.	Household Work.	Reading, Writing Drawing, &c.	Lace Making.	Mattrass Making.	Straw Platting.	Cooper.	Baker.	Weaver.	Engraver.	Blanket Quilting.	TOTAL.
M. 1 2 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	3		11	4 I	ura	bles	ES .	1881	Tot	63 63 al	191	2 Em	50 21 79 60	Cor		8 Un	em ₁	6	24 20 30 16 11 22 15 12 150 ed.
		F	EMA	LE	es i	EMP		ED		Ju	NE		n,					niai	
Needle W	olinos Tork	(C)			100 100 100	det.	1 1	-	**	bles	1		able	-	-	nin	als	Т	OTAL.
Fancy								1		5	40		4			1		201	10
Laundry :	and H	lous	ehol							70			6	434		10		Pile.	13
Music, Re	eading	8, 8	ce.				-			4			1						5
Tot	al em	ploy	yed						5	9	1	1	7			1			77
									9	29	1:	1	8	1				-	
Dit	to un	emp	loye	d		**				9									47

No. 22.

TIME IN HOSPITAL.

1	-	7	L		0311				
	1 =	F	92	00	:	12		4	
	Total.	2	56	1	:	-		255	
		M.	36	-	:	10		19	
	More than 12 Months.	H	1 81	61	:	-	1	1 :	1
	re t	4	1 41	01	:	-			1
	Mo 12 h	M.	1 -	:			1	:	1
1		1 4	01	:	:		la sh	01	1
	12.		01	:	:	:	More than 23 Months	0.5	
-	-	N.	1	:	:	:	More than 23 Months	:	
		i.	! :	:	:		Ī	:	
	1	li,	:		:	:	22.	:	
1		M.	:	:	1	:	-	:	
		1 :	63	:	- 3.	-	1	:	
1	10.	i,	-	:	:	-	21.	:	
	1	M.	-	:	:	:	-	:	
	-	i	00	:	:	:		:	
1	9.	14	-	:	:	:	20.	:	
		M.	01	:	:	:	64	: 1	
-	-	T.	9	01	:	-		- 1	
	8.	F. 7	00	-	-		19	- 1	
		M. 1	60	-	:	-		:	
1	7.	E.	10	-	:			64	
rhs,		. Pr	00	-	:	:	18.	C9	
MONTHS.		М.	01	:		:	-	:	
M	.9	÷.	12	:	:	:	17.	- 1	
		F.	10	:	:	:		-	-
		M.	1	:	:	:		:	_
		i.	7	:	:	-		4	
	io.	F. I	7	-	-	-	16.	00)	
1		M. I	7	:	:	:	-	-	
-	-			-	:	C1		4	
	2	£ .	9 13	-	:	01	15.	- 1	
		M. F	4	:	:	:	-	60	
			00		:	64		-	-
	63		9	1 1	:	:	14.	-	
		i i	61		•	09	-	:	
	-	N.	-		:	:		50	
-		Ė	00	-	:	-	13.	2	
-	oi	<u> </u>	10	-	:	:	1	20	
		×.	69		-			:	
-	nder	Ė	-		:	4	-		
	1. in	pi,	:	-	:	09	12,	-	
	an(×	-	:					
	DISCHARGED. and under		Cured	For special reasons	Disqualified	Died		Uncured	1
	HAR		:	For special reasons	nalif			ured	
	ISCI	-	ure	For	Disq	Died		Une	
	D		0		-	-			

No. 23.
PATIENTS CURED.

		В	113	HLE	GIVI	но	SPI	ITA	L.					95
1 :	Ė	0	10	00	-	:	:	:	-	:	:	-	:	1 61
12 or more.	-	1	*	01	-	:	:	:	-	:	:	:	:	1.5
or	N.	C1	-	-	:		:	:	:	:	:	:	:	1 4
	+	- :	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:		:	1 :
11.	i i	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	1 :
	N.	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	1 :
	ė l	:	:	-	-	:		:	:	:	:	:	:	01
10.	. A	:	:	-	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	-
	. M	:	:	:	-	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	1 -
	Ė	-	:	:	:	-	-	:	:	:	:	:	:	0
9.	, i	:	:	:	:	:	-	:	0		:	:	:	1 -
	M.	-	:	:	:	-	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	63
	÷.	10	:	:	:	:	P9:	:		:	:	:	:	1 10
00	F.	01	:	:	:	:	-:	:	:	:	:	:	:	01
	M.	00	:	:	:	:	-:	:	*	:	:	1	:	00
	i	1 -	C4	:	:	:	0:	:	~	:	:	:	:	1 4
1.	*	1 -	:	:	:	:	:	:	-	:	:	:	:	01
	M.	1	65	:	:	:	9:	:	1.	:	:	:	:	01
	i.	10	-	61	13	7:	-	;		:	:	:	:	15
.9	1	4	-	-	-	:	7	:	1	:	:	:	1	00
	N.	9	:	-	7	:	:		1	:	:	:	:	1
1	i l	10	01	:	-	:	:	:	-	:	:	:	:	1 4
	2	9	:	:	:	:	:	:	-	:	1:	:	:	1
	M.	4	61		-	:	:	2	:	:	:	:	1:20	10
	F	0	-	-	-	:	-	:	:	:	:	:	:	138
-	ź	0	:	-	-	:	-	:	:	:	:	:	:	0
	N.	00	-	:	:	:	:	:		:	:	:	:	1 4
	÷	1 10	00	1	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	00
1 0	14	1 4	04	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	1	:	:	9
	M.	1 -	-	:			:	:	20:	:	:	:		01
	Ė	1 -	:	G8	-	:	-	:	194	1	:	:		0
oi	*	21	:	C4	-	:	:	:	*	:	:	:	-	100
	N.	01	:	:	i	. :	-	:	1	1	:	:	:	1 4
H 4	i	1:	:	:	:	:	:	:	1:	:	:	:	-	1:
Under 1 Month.	à	:	:	:	1	:	:	1	:	:	:	:	:	1:
D	N.		:	:	:	:	:	:	*:	:	:	:	:	1:
	Months.	1.	લ	ė	4.	.0	6.	7.	8	6	10.	11.	12.	
ore	é	54	14	6	9	-	+	:	03	-		:	:	92
e bef	i	60	1	1	7	:	03	-	9	:	:	:	:	99
Insane before Admission.	×	01	-	01	01	-	-	:	:	-	:	:	:	36
0.00		-	-		-			-				-		1

No. 24.

Daily Average Number of Patients in the Hospital, during the Year 1863.

		culo			
	+	3333 162 8 6 58	200		
Total.	i i	127 365			
arch, 183	2016	205368			
1 yesinde	A Alle	121308	Criminals.	44,473	
Oriminals.	L dies -	00 01 01 01 01 00	ring 1863		- 8
aly, 1838.	13th J	113,56	Number of Daily Rations during 1863. Incurables.	141	21,707
ptember, ingpet, 18	21st St	688221	of Daily I	25,041	Total 121,707
Incurables.	170	34809			
ed Language	N N N	34 12 34 55	Curables.	52,193	
une, 18ki	C PH C	142363			
Curables.	C de l	242 645 645			The second
aben 1 de	W.	58 23 3 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	als.	n gen	

No. 25.

RETURN OF the INCURABLE PATIENTS NOW IN BETHLEM HOSPITAL.

No.	Sex.	Age when Admitted.	Date of Admission.
1	Male	24	13th July, 1805.
2	Male	48	26th January, 1827.
3	Male	20	16th September, 1831.
4	Female	25	28th March, 1834.
5	Female	28	20th November, 1835.
6	Male	26	5th February, 1836.
7	Female	20	4th March, 1836.
8	Female	48	29th July, 1836.
9	Male	18	18th November, 1836.
10	Female	30	13th January, 1837.
11	Male	34	20th July, 1838.
12	Male	26	21st September, 1838.
13	Female	42	2nd August, 1839.
14	Female	38	17th January, 1840.
15	Male	37	29th February, 1840.
16	Male	26	20th March, 1840.
17	Male	26	27th March, 1840.
18	Female	26	22nd May, 1840.
19	Male	27	24th June, 1840.
20	Female	48	20th November, 1840.
21	Male	28	15th January, 1841.
22	Male	31	30th April, 1841.
23	Female	35	22nd June, 1842.
24	Male	27	14th October, 1842.
25	Female	. 31	22nd March, 1844.

BETHLEM HOSPITAL.

RETURN OF INCURABLE PATIENTS-continued.

No.	Sex.	Age when Admitted.	Date of Admission.
26	Female	36	21st June, 1844.
27	Male	28	19th July, 1844.
28	Male	21	20th September, 1844.
29	Female	34	13th December, 1844.
30	Male	29	20th December, 1844.
31	Male	29	28th February, 1845.
32	Female	38	7th March, 1845.
33	Male	46	13th June, 1845.
34	Female	29	10th October, 1845.
35	Male	26	7th November, 1845.
36	Male	50	21st November, 1845.
37	Male	23	23rd January, 1846.
38	Male	32	2nd July, 1 847.
39	Male	28	14th February, 1848.
40	Male	28	14th February, 1848.
41	Female	24	14th February, 1848.
42	Female	26	3rd January, 1851.
43	Female	40	4th July, 1851.
44	Female	41	18th July, 1851.
45	Female	48	16th July, 1852.
46	Male	30	6th August, 1852.
47	Female	35	13th August, 1852.
48	Male	56	29th April, 1853.
49	Male	41	7th July, 1854.
50	Male	31	27th October, 1854.
51	Male	36	27th October, 1854.

BETHLEM HOSPITAL.

RETURN OF INCURABLE PATIENTS—continued.

No.	Sex.	Age when Admitted.	Date of Admission.
52	Female	29	15th December, 1854.
53	Male	55	22nd December, 1854.
54	Female	49	22nd December, 1854.
55	Female	42	22nd June, 1855.
56	Female	3108	21st November, 1856.
57	Female	27	9th January, 1857.
58	Male	41	6th March, 1857.
59	Female	20	11th December, 1857.
60	Female	40	11th December, 1857.
61	Male	32	21st May, 1858.
62	Female	43	18th February, 1859.
63	Female	49	18th February, 1859.
64	Female	44	11th March, 1859.
65	Female	23	29th April, 1859.
66	Female	25	27th May, 1859.
67	Male	53	7th October, 1859.
68	Female	63	30th May, 1860.
	16000	100	Fomale
1 00 1	Territorial 613 f	1	Access States 1
1	Designation distr	4	Tennil as
1	OF PRINCIPAL 110	30	and the same of the same of
1	Total August (18)	88	Temat
-	257 Silvin dress	1 00	The same and the same
- 23	HER BURGET	30	Janistan Mark Day
	STIR OLOGEC	1 30	Discourse date - 100

No. 26.

Time the Incurable Patients have been in the Hospital.

ASSESSMENT DIES.	Males.	Females.	Total.
Upwards of 50 years	1		1
	2		1 2 21
_ 20	11	10	21
_ 15		6	15
_ 10	9 3 5 3	5	8
- 5	5	4	9
- 2	3	9	8 9 12
	34	34	68

No. 27.

Degree of Education of Incurable Patients in the Hospital.

Applications 1	Males.	Females.	Total.
Good	11	17	28
Moderate	14	12	26
Imperfect	5	3	8
None	2		2
Not ascertained	2	2	4
	34	34	68

No. 28.

Synopsis of Offences of the Criminal Lunatics confined in Bethlem Hospital, 31st December, 1863.

Nature of Offences.	Males.	Females.	Total.
1. Against the State.			
(1.) High Treason	1	- 000	1
(2.) Sedition	1	7 .01	1
2. Against the Person	73	1	74
3. Against Property	34		34
4. Other offences	3	9	3
	112	1	113

No. 29.

Time the Criminal Patients have been in Bethlem Hospital.

and the state of	Males.	Females.	Total.
From 35 to 40 years	2		2
,, 30 - 35 ,,	(CO) 12	Mar tolate	-
,, 25 — 30 ,,			
20 05	3	1	3
15 00	6		6
10 15 "	10		10
	12		12
$, 5-10$ $, \ldots$	16	1	17
or 4 years	7	Para Care	7
11 0 11	12		
,, 2 ,,	14	in Change	12
,1 ,			14
dmitted during the year 1863	22		22
the year 1863	8		8
and the state of t	mint.		Later 18
	112	1	113

DIETARY TABLE.

BREAKFAST.

Every Day. Males .. Tea, with 7 oz. of Bread and Butter.

Females.. ,, 6 ditto

DINNER.

{ 6 oz. Boiled Beef } 4 oz .Bread, \$\frac{3}{4}lb. Vegetables, 1 pt. Beer. Sunday Males Females.. 5 ,, ,, 4 $\frac{1}{2}$ Monday Males .. 6 ,, Roast Mutton, 4 34 ,, Females. . 5 ,, ,, 4 1 " " 3 Tuesday Males .. 6 ,, Boiled Mutton,4 Females... 5 ,, ,, 4 Wednesday.. Males .. 6 ,, Roast Beef, 4 ,, 3 ,, Females... 5 ,, ,, 4 " 2 " 1 2 " Thursday..... Same as Monday. Friday Same as Tuesday. Saturday.... Males .. 16 oz. Meat Pie, 4 oz. Bread, 1 oz. Cheese, 1 pt. Beer. 4 Females.. 14,,

SUPPER.

Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, Males .. Same as Breakfast.

Thursday, and Friday Males .. 7 oz. Bread, 2 oz. Cheese, 1 pint Beer.

Every Day Females.. Same as at Breakfast.

Patients in employment in the Grounds, Workshops, or Laundry, to be allowed 4 oz. of Bread, 1 oz. of Cheese or $\frac{1}{2}$ oz. of Butter, and $\frac{1}{2}$ a pint of Beer for Luncheon, and $\frac{1}{2}$ a pint of Beer in the Afternoon.

Every Patient to be allowed $1\frac{3}{4}$ oz. Tea, 8 oz. of Sugar, 8 oz. of Butter, and $1\frac{1}{2}$ pints Milk weekly.

On Christmas Day the Dinner to be Roast Beef and Plum Pudding.

On New Year's Day, a Mince Pie to be added to the usual fare.

On Good Friday, a Bun.

On Easter and Whit Monday, 6 oz. of Roast Veal to be allowed instead of the usual Meat for the day.

The Dinners to be further varied by the occasional substitution of Pork and Bacon, when Peas and Beans are in season; and also by the occasional substitution of Fish, and Fruit Pies, when Fish and Fruit are plentiful and good.

The Sick to be dieted at the discretion of the Resident Physician.

The Attendants to have at all times the means of obtaining Gruel for such Patients as may require it.

The above to be considered maximum allowances, and all quantities unconsumed are to be taken in diminution of the next supply from the Stores of the Hospital.

BETHLEM HOSPITAL

LIST OF OFFICERS, ATTENDANTS, AND SERVANTS.

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS.

		£	8.	d.
*1	Resident Physician	600	0	0
+1	Surgeon	80	0	0
+1	Chaplain	200	0	0
*1	Apothecary	300	0	0
+1	Surveyor	125	0	0
*1	Clerk, Receiver, and Accountant	300	0	0
*1	Steward	350	0	0
*1	Matron	150	0	0
	The second secon	£2105	0	0

^{*} Lodged only.

Of the total amount of these salaries £200 is repaid by Government on account of criminal lunatics.

[†] Neither boarded nor lodged.

OTHER OFFICERS, ATTENDANTS, AND SERVANTS.

MALES.

	£.	8.	d.
1 Clerk of the Works (lodged only)	54	12	0
*1 Steward's Clerk	36	0	0
*2 Receiver's Clerks	95	0	0
*1 Organist	20	0	0
1 Chapel Clerk	5	0	0
†1 Under Store-keeper	52	0	0
†1 Hall porter, (a great coat once in three years)	39	0	0
†1 Assistant do., (a great coat once in three years)	27	0	0
1 Gate-keeper, (a great coat once in three years)	55	0	0
†1 Cutter of provisions	44	0	0
†1 Cook	36	0	0
†1 Assistant do	23	0	0
1 Head Attendant (boarded and lodged)	60	0	0
†1 Attendant	60	0	0
†1 Do	55	0	0
†3 Do at £40. per annum each	120	0	0
†1 Do £39. per annum	39	0	0
†2 Do£35. per annum each	70	0	0
†1 Do£34. per annum	34	0	0
†1 Do£32. per annum	32	0	0
†2 Do£29. per annum each	58	0	0
†1 Do£28. per annum †3 Do£27. per annum each	28	0	0
- Tritter tritter per unitality cuch	81	0	0
	104	0	0
1 Por training the state of	50	0	0
*‡3 Carpenters	234 78	0	0
*‡1 Plumber	78	0	0
*‡1 Engineer	104	0	0
*‡1 Bricklayer	78	0	0
*‡1 Painter	78	0	0
* 2 Stokers	130	-	0
*‡1 Labourer	62		0
*11 Gardener	78		0
*12 Assistant do 20s. per week each	104	9 7	0
*11 Mattrass maker	70		0
	£2372	4	0

^{*} Neither boarded nor lodged.

[†] In addition to board and lodging, have each a suit of clothes, a hat, and working blouses.

[‡] Occasionally employed at King Edward's Schools.

Lodged only, with a suit of clothes and a hat.

FEMALES,

		The second second second	£	s.	d.
1	Housem	aid	18	0	0
1	Laundry	maid	30	0	0
1	Do.		25	0	0
6	Attenda	nts£30. per annum each	180	0	0
1	Do.	£28. per annum	28	0	0
1	Do.	£25. per annum	25	0	0
4	Do.	£23. per annum each	92	0	0
1	Do.	£22. per annum	22	0	0
2	Do.	£21. per annum each	42	0	0
1	Do.	£20. per annum	20	0	0
2	Do.	£24. per annum each	48	0	0
2	Do.	£19, per annum each	38	0	0
3	Do.	£18. per annum each	54	0	0
1	Portress	£6. 10s. per annum	6	10	0
			£628	10	0

The Hospital is repaid by Government, on account of Criminal Lunatics, the wages of ten male attendants, with an allowance of £35. per annum each for maintenance and clothing.

The wages of male attendants commence at £25. per annum, and they increase, if their conduct be satisfactory, £1. yearly afterwards, until they become £35. per annum, after which no further increase is allowed; Attendants in charge of a Ward are allowed £5. per annum extra. Female attendants commence at any amount not exceeding £18. per annum, and after they increase with like restriction £1. yearly, until they become £25. per annum, after which no further increase is allowed. The wages of male attendants were permitted, previous to the year 1841, to increase to £60. per annum.

D. Batten, Printer, Clapham Cemmon.

		Total.	Bethlem.	Incurables.			Total.	Bethlem.	Incurables.
1863	RECEIPT.	£ s. d.	£ s. d.	2 . 4	1863	EXPENDITURE.	£ 1. d.	£ s. d.	£ 1. d.
Janl	To Balance of Account, andited to 31st December, 1862	827 14 43	827 14 41		200	By Provisions for Patients and Household, viz			
	BETHLESS—Arreary, 31st December, 1862, per Audit				310	Meat £2,563 5 2			
	£12,297 5 7				313 316 317	Rice Oatmeal Ac 331 9 3			
	To Received, vii. " Liverpool Street, Liverpool Buildings, &c. £1,350 11 8				320 323	Cheese, Bacon, Butter, &c	7,120 18 3		f Crim. Lunatics
	Bishopsgate Street, Without 334 4 3				398 323	Clothing and Bedding	7,120 18 3		14,946 12 7
	Ormond Mens 25 7 6		120012		349	Medicine, &c		3,973 10 4	1,889 8 7
	Gardner's Terrace, Mile End 204 4 2			100	375 342	Coals and Firewood	3,688 13 3		
	, Meorgate				403		3,390 13 11	2,430 15 8	959 18 3
	Kent 1658 18 8				396 414	Taxes, &c., on the Hospital			
	, Rent Charges 89 0 7	10,316 4 0	10,306 4 0		406 366	Printing and Stationery			
	Property Tax allowed 334 9 0 Allowed 0 0 8 Arrears of Rent to Mich., 1863, unpaid 31st Dec.	1314 13 2			406 412		3,730 7 6	2,528 3 5	1,202 4 1
	1863 1,636 11 11	310.13			413 413	Superannuation Annuities .	895 17 6	895-17 6	
	£12,297 5 7				349	Law Charges	145 15 4	145 15 4	
	INCUBABLES - Arrears 31st December, 1862, per audit 3,145 4 6 One Year's Reat of Estate in Lincolnshire to Michaelman, 1863 6,315 11 1				414	Premiums of Insurance	504 7 1	504 7 1	
	£9,460 15 7	PARTIE THE ST				LINCOLNAMIRE			
	Wainfeet St. Mary £4,559 7 7 Wainfeet All Saints, Clarby, Mumby, &c 1,475 5 6	the file of a			358	Salaries— Curate and Agent	400 0 0		400 0 0
	Property Tax allowed	6,034 13 1		6,034 13 1	409	School at Wainfleet— Salaries of Master and Mistress			
	Out Rent				400	Sundries	152 14 7		152_14 7
	49,460 15 7				364 365	Sea Bank 48 8 8 Deductions from Rental— Premiums of Insurance, &c. 66 8 9			
	The state of the s	14111 61			364 376	Casual Expenses 83 19 5 New Buildings and Repairs			
	Tithe Rent-charge, Wainfleet St. Mary One Year to Michaelmas, 1863	111111111111111111111111111111111111111			376 409 202	Purchase of land at Anderby			
Ledg Folio	To Received Tithe Rent-charge To Dividends on Stock in the Public Funds, viz.—	664 19 6		664 19 6	7.55	Comment of particular for	2,697 1 0		2,697 1 0
164 174	£38,600 0 0 3 per Cent, Consols					By Balance	22,726 8 5 4,469 18 5 <u>1</u>	10,478 9 4 4,418 16 8½	12,247 19 1 51 1 9
175 177 172	19,600 0 0 New 3 per Cent, Stock					A. M. JEAFFRESON,			
172	Incumantas—Diridends on Stock.	3,043 10 0	3,043 10 0			Clerk, Receiver, &c.			
501	£1000 0 0 New 2 per Cent. Stock	25 0 0		25 0 0		We, whose names are hereunto subscribed, have Examined and Audited		1	
196	To Casual Receipts—BEWHERM. Received for Transfer of Leases					the preceding Account for the Year One Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty- three, and find the same correct, and the Balance as specified, this Twenty-		30. 3	
	" Donation from W. D. Cronin, Esq					third day of January, One Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty four.	20071	207.07.4	
	1862 319 6 9 Ditto 7 10 0	1000				JOHN EDWARD JOHNSON, Treasurer. JAS. LYS. SEAGER,	4000	- 200 13 - 5	
	Casual Receipts—Incurables.	719 17 8	719 17 8			EDWARD FALKENER, B. DREW,	1320 1 1	200 1 1	
371	Received of Government for Clothing and Maintenance of Criminal Patients	4,946 12 7	in it	4,946 12 7		A. BOYSÓN, G. OSTELL LEICESTER,	1200 2 2	17 6 7	
	Sale of Wood at Waindeet	627 15 8		627 15 8		JAMES FARQUHAR.	10000	1	
	Station Com					the state of the s	71	I don't have	
	to design from the tax	0.000	3 -1			and the same of th	Stor p 2	100 12	
	Elect Store Lines Serve Space, Ar. 3								
	describe the plant and stress there is	27,196 6 10}	14,897 6 05	12,299 0 10		Contraction are projection.	27,196 6 104	14,897 6 01	12,299 0 10

... The Property of Lebera, which is the country of the The state of the s 4/6

GENERAL ACCOUNT OF BOTH HOSPITALS, 1863.

INCOME, 1864.

	0	,				0	10
	11					10	7
	16.968 17 9					3,068 10 0	£20.637 7 0
00 4	C 80	0	0	0	0	0	. :
∞ 4	13	0	0	10	c	0	
£10,415 8 7,012 4	£17,427 13 458 15	£1,140 0	546	262 10	525	25 0 0	:
::	:	:	:	: :	:	:	:
::	:	:	: :	:	:	:	Income
CURABLES - Rent, Land-Tax, Rent-charges, and Insurances INCURABLES - Rent, Rent-charges, and Insurances	Deductions	DIVIDENDS on Stock in the Public Funds, viz	19,000 0 0, New 3 per Cent. Reduced Bank Annuities	0,	21,000 0 0, New 24 per Cent. Stock	Incurables £1.000 0 0, New 23 per Cent. Stock	Net Annual Income

A. M. JEAFFRESON,

- Clerk, Receiver, &c.

23rd Jannary, 1864

... The Lording Bell of the Letters descend to mustake of the t or of Lord soul and American State of the land of the 0

GENERAL ACCOUNT OF BOTH HOSPITALS, 1863.

BETHLEM HOSPITAL Balance in favor of the Hos BETHLEM HOSPITAL ditto ditto	spital		 		£2,885		2 5
	*				£7,355		8
Cash at Bankers, Messrs. Glyn & Co.			 £7,430 1	4 8			1
Less Cheques paid, not appeared	٠		 75				
			£7,355 1	4 8	/		
INCL	JRABLE I	UND.					
	JRABLE F	UND.					
Debt and Interest 31st December, 1862			 		£14,748	16	4
one rear's interest on Debt, at 4 per cent			 		695	8	3
			 		£45,444		3
Excess of Receipts over Expenditure	?		 		£45,444		7
					£45,444	4 1	7

BRIDEWELL HOSPITAL.

num Pant shares a													
RENT-Rent-charges as	ad in	nsurances		**			£	12,056	1	5			
Deductions								839	8	1			
IVIDENDS on Stock is	the	Public Fu	nds, viz.—				-			-	£11,216	13	-
£21,000 0	0,	3 per Cen	t. Reduced	Annu	ities			£630	0	0			
1,409 17					Chancery)			42	5	11			
39,000 0			r Cent. Sto					1,170	0	0			
			t. Annuitie		Chancery)			23	2	8			
2,500 0	0,	3 per Cen	t. Consols					75	0	0			
											1,940	8	1
					Net Annual	Income					£13,157	1	1

BETHLEM HOSPITAL.

	IN	COME, 186	4.						
CURABLES - Rent, Land-T INCURABLES - Rent, Rent-		irances		 £10,415 7,012					
	Deductions			 £17,427 458		3	16,968	17	q
DIVIDENDS on Stock in th	ne Public Funds, viz						10,000	.,	3
£38,600 0 0,	3 per Cent. Consols			 £1,140	0	0			
19,000 0 0,	3 per Cent. Reduced Ba New 3 per Cent. Stock	nk Annuities		 546		0			
	Bank Stock.		**	 570		0			
	New 21 per Cent. Stock			 262		0			
			.,	 525	0	0			
Incurables £1,000 0 0,	New 21 per Cent. Stock			 25	0	0	3,068	10	0
		Net Annual	Income	 			£20,037	7	9

A. M. JEAFFRESON,

Clerk, Receiver, &c.